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“The rush to the gold fields of the
Wichita Mountains has commenced
in camest. The trails are all covercd
with a rushing mass of humanity.
Everyone_seems confident that_the
future will bring forth rich strikes.
Fully, 20,000 persons have been into
the mountains since the opening. Six
thousand _claims are staked. The
Wichita Mountains have begun to
draw like the Klondike.”

So_wrote reporter W. R. Draper
in a lengthy story for the New York
Times in November 1901. The min-
ing camps of Wildman, Oreana, Doris,
Golden Pass, Poverty Gulch, Crater-
ville, Lightning Culch, and Moers
teemed with bearded gold seckers,
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each wisttully hoping for a bonanza
in the new land thrown open to set-
tlement by the great Land Lottery
of August 6, 1901

Meers, in the land that had once
been part of the vast Kiowa, Co-
‘manche, and Apache country of south-
west Oklahoma, nestled ai the base
of majestic Mount Sheridan. The
miners’ camp straddled an ancient In-
dian_trail leading into the rugged
granite_mountains from the north.

‘The town was named for Andrew
3. Moers, an_inveterate  prospector
who had periodically slipped into the
mountains — forbidden land to_ the
gold secker — since 1886, Tn '98 he
was arrested by Indian police at the
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shaft. A year before the opening, he
camped at the base of Mount
Sheridan.

Meers hailed from Arkansas where
be had served as a captain in the
Confederacy. A surveyor and_civil
engincer, he managed a hotel in Man-
sum before becoming county surveyor
of Greer County in 188990, Sixty
‘years old when the town was founded,
Meers became recorder of the Otter
Creck Mining District. Owning many
claims  himself, his wife, Amelia,
staked out her own just south of
Camp Meers.

The new ragtown of miners did
not remain long in what later became
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the Wichita Mountains Wildlife
Refuge, for in October 1902 the fed-
eral government ordered the residents
to vacate what was then set aside as
a forest reserve. The miners folded
their tents and replanted their bus-
tling_city one mile beyond Mount
Sheridan on the first rise just north
of Medicine Crock

Meers would grow to bonst 300
miners and their families. Some were
seasoned gold scekers who had spent
a lifetime in the West. Others were
just secking a stake. Wayfarers sup-
ported two hotels: Hotel de Thomp-
con, and a tent with cots run by
J. Moore Williams, whose daughter
Iva would marry miner W. O. Al





[image: image3.png]MIEERS

len, who also ran the butcher shop
and meat market.

Silas Teague opened his blacksmith
chop on Broadway. Dr. F. A. Star-
buck erected a two-story cottage on
North Broadway not far from C. H.
‘Slankard's livery stable. Dr. Edwards
took up residence on the comer of
First and Main near the post office,
while Dr. Decker opened his bu
ness opposite the home of Dr. Star-
buck on West Broadway.

Once the city marshall of Carter,
South Dakota, Meers' postmaster
3. A. Kirk built his home at the cor-
ner of Broadway and Hinton Ave-
nues. Doctors 1. F. Starley and S. F.
McCully bung their shingles up
nearby.

Frank C. Davis, Ph.C. of Oxford,
Kansas, built the Mount Sheridan
Drug Company, a long frame building
which housed the local drug store,

4 founder of Meers, Willam Larve, betier known as "Dutc
Crud arrasva i 1001 Tust east of hoont S

the office of Dr. F. A. Starbuck, for-
merlyprofessor of material medica
and therapeutics at Eclectic Univer-
sity in Kansas City, and in back, the
printing press for Meers' official
weekly newspaper, the Mount Sheri-
dan Miner.

H A Hinton operated the City
Restaurant which held a_confection-
ary where ice cream and cold soft
drinks could be bought. Tmmediately
east of the post office was the Three
Boys Claim with three mine shafts.
Adjacent was the 73-foot Mary Me-
Lean shaft belonging to butcher W. O.
Allen, who later sold his mine for
§1,200. Just south of the post office
was the Maud's Mine.

Dr. Salem J. Hardin of Shawnee
opened his office a mile east of Mount
Sheridan, where in a 20 by 60-foot
building he opened a_clothing and
gonts’ goods store, and headquartered
his Shawnee Mining Company which
sunk the Lost Lead, Joe Dandy,
Compton, Teddy, and other mincs,
expending more than $19,500.

Eugene Deacon opened his Miners
Supply House next door to Hardin,
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advertising best flour per sack, $1.10;
bestgranulated sugar per 16 Ibs.,
§1; lard per Ib,, 12 conts; salt pork
per Tb, 12 cents; heavy Jersey over-
alls, 50 conts; heavy mole-skin shirts,
50 cents; good prunes, 3 Ibs., 25 cents;
good syrup per gallon, 45 cents; heavy
underwear, 50 conts

Later Meers got regular passenger
service when the Central Livery of
Cache opened its hack line ten miles
north to the miners’ settlement, run-
ning Wednesday and Friday of each
week, fifty cents per passenger each
way.

The Gold City Mining & Milling
Co, Mt Sheridan Smelting & Ro-
duction Works, and U. S. Develop-
ment Co., were among the mining
concerns with headquarters in Meers,
Oklahoma Territory.

Meers scems to have been the more
refined of the Wichita gold camps.
Tt never had a saloon. Instead it had
study clubs such as the Pure English
Club, the Mount Sheridan Literary
Society, and the Women's Christian
“Temperance Union, which accounts
for there being no saloons. The Lit-
erary Society published a paper
filled with jokes and bits of gossip
called the M. Sheridan Red Light.

Meers had an over_abundanco of
rollicking humor — all in the name
of fun. Take the case of the hypnotist,
Professor John_ Turner, who showed
up one day. He hypnotized Lynn
Baker, who under the hypnotic. in-
fluence “began to impersonate a
horse,” and kicked Turner through
the tent.

“The professor, thinking this his
chance to escape, started north on a
run that would do credit fo a Co-
manche Indian on the war path,” To-
called a witness. Finally, Tumer con-
trolled his beast, offering “Baker all
his_earthly possessions if he would
desist from any prosecution in_the
matter”” Meers saw its last of hyp-
notics after that.

Once o gullible stranger inquired
about the wild animals in the hills.
The miners named wild bear (butcher
W. 0. Allen sold bear meat in his
store) mountain Tions (one had re-
contly carried off a colt), and yes,
there were Biff Bulgers, too.

“What is a Biff Bulger?" asked
the_tenderfoot.

“Why, it's a medium-sized animal,”
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short legs on the left side, and two
Iong ones on the right, and walks
with the short legs on the higher
side of his path. He has a flat tail
with which he throws rocks — his
only method of defense.” Naturally
Baker pointed the greenhom in the
direction that harbored the strange
animal. When anyone heard n_far.
fetched story, it became known as
“just a Biff Bulger

The miners devised other pastimes,
organizing boxing matches, races for
fat men, greased pig races, playing
eroquet, baseball, dances with enter-
tainment by local fiddlers, or secretly,
a cock fight

Meersites organized the Comanche
Sunday School Association in August
of 1902 The religious convention be-
came a much awaited annual affair,
and in 1904, Editor Davis cranked
out the Mt. Sheridan Daily Miner
to cover the festival. That summer
F. A. Brown of Marlow, a Cumber-
Iand Presbyterian preacher, organized
the first church in Meers

The miners and homesteaders in the
‘mountains often contested each other’s
rights to land. One heated debate
ended with a gunfight in Cutthroat
Gap. Such troubles resulled in much
mining property being tied up in It
gation. But after Indian police de-
stroyed the mining cquipment of P. T.
Benbow near Meers, the miners
swore it would not happen a second
time.

The eventful day came on Septem-
ber 3, 1903. Indian Agent James F.
Randlett ordered a squad of police
to remove miners Sterling P. Tles
and W. O. Allen from their mining
claims on Indian land. Chief of
Police Frank B. Farwell and his
doputy W. D. Sileott were soon lead-
ing a dozen Indian police foward
Mers. “Every miner in Camp Meers,
armed with the best implements of
war that he could command reported
for duty at the mining property of
. P. Ties, located on a small eminenco
just outside the camp on an Indian
allotment,” recounted. Editor Davis.

Upon arrival of the Indian Agent’s
police, “they were confronted by one
hundred armed men. Like minute
men, they came from behind trecs
and ‘rocks and out of caves and can-
yons” Editor Davis counted 1o less

than twenty Winchesters,
shooters were s plentifu
on a May day.”

“Taking in the situation, it
decided there were too many miners
for them to encounter,” Davis went
on, “and after a halthour's con-
versation, the officers returned the
way they came” Tles and W. O.
Allen both later won their case in
court, much to the ire of Indian
Agent James Randlett,

Every camp had its_dyed-in-the-
wool sourdough. Tn Meers it was
“Dutch Bill” William Larve was his
name, but the sobriquet fit him ap-
propriately. A tall, gangling German
who spoke with o heavy brogue, he
would never be caught without his
pockets bulging with mineral speci-
mens. He had mined throughout the
West and in Mexico.

January 6, 1904, was Dutch Bill's
day. That morning a dynamite blast
exposed what appeared o be o
bonanza in the bottom of his mine,
the Elizabeth. Assayers pronounced
worth 421 ounces of gold, or 3850
to the ton! (Fifty dollars a ton

would have been profitable.) Dutch

Bill dug on foverishly. But alas, he
had hit only @ rich pocket — an oft-
repeated story.

Such dealt o death blow to the
Wichita Mountains miners. One smal-
ter, erected at a cost of 10,000,
yielded only two_pennyweights of
Fold, one bar of silver, and two of
copper. Geologist Charles Gould be-
lived that no less than one million
dollars was spent seeking gold in
the Wichitas.

By 1907 the more than 2,000 min-
ers drifted on, or tumed to farming
and ranching. That year, too, brought
the first touring car into the moun-
tains, and the first buffalo since their
near extermination three  decades
belore,

Meers s today only a_grocery-
post_officeservice station, a_mile
north of its_ heyday site. Some say
the present Meers Store once served
as the Mt. Sheridan Drug Company,
from whose back rooms rolled_the
weekly newspapers, spreading tidings
of the last great gold rush east of the
Rockies.
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